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'the big old cutting shop' exists in the Royal Brierley Crystal Archive and shows this 
machinery in use. The main drive wheel is situated towards the southwest end of the 
range, the tie beam next to it being strengthened from below by a central post. Directly 
opposite the wheel, in the central partition wall, is an area of disturbed brick work, 
presumably a former aperture through which the drive belt passed to the steam engine 
that powered this arrangement. 

The southeast half of the range (LB21 ), which, circa 1946 contained the 'Flower Room' 
and the 'Small Cutting Shop', retains its central transverse wall dividing it into two 
rooms, but is currently divided into a series of mid-to-late 20th -century offices. The walls 
are mostly obscured by cladding, but in the southwest office the rounded brick jambs of 
an original window survives, though the window itself appears to be a replacement. This 
window is directly opposite the main drive wheel of the machinery in LB 17. Attached to 
one side of the embrasure is a metal housing. Immediately to the southeast is the site of 
the engine house, the tall chimney ofwhich is visible on the photo of 1911. It was a small 
annexe that projected from the wall of the range, though it has now disappeared without 
trace. 

The Southwest Wing Ground Storey (Figure 11) 

The internal arrangement of the southwest wing is rather unusual. The external evidence 
suggests that whereas the northwest and northeast sides were of two stories, in uniformity 
with the northwest range, an L-shaped area within the southern angle either had a floor at 
mezzanine level, or was only one storey in height, with clerestorey lighting. There are no 
original features apparent at ground level but it is possible that there may be evidence 
concealed behind the lime wash. The ground storey has been subjected to considerable 
alteration, and the original arrangements cannot be reconstructed in their entirety, though 
the fenestration suggests that there was a roughly rectangular room to the northwest 
(LB8A), an L-shaped room towards the south (LB8B), and another L-shaped space 
towards the east (LB8C). Circa 1946 LB8A contained the Lehr3 to the southwest, and 
the Shrower4 to the northeast. No original features are visible, several large inserted 
openings having removed most of the northeast and southwest walls; the southwest half 
of the southeast wall has also gone, and there is a large, blocked, inserted opening in the 
other half. fn addition, the northeast end of this wall has been reconstructed so that it 
now projects towards the northwest and continues the line of the partition wall within the 
northwest range. At the southeast end of LB8B's southwest wall is a blocked semi­
circular archway approximately 3.15m high by 2.75m wide, which may have been the 
entrance to the original Lehr, but there are no other original features. 

3 The Lebr was the annealing oven, situated next to the glasshouse, into which newly made products were 
placed at the hottest end and gradually pushed forward to the cooler end of the oven so that they cooled 
slowly. 

4 The Sbrower was a room situated at the cool end of the Lebr where the products were inspected and from 
where they were distributed to other parts of the factory. 
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The L-shaped wall between LB8B and the northwest section of LB8C is thickened by a 
high chamfered plinth (Plate 13). This wall is broken on its southwest side by a large 
20th-century opening. Evidence at first-floor level (see below) suggests that the southeast 
section of the wall returned towards the southeast, though there are no visible indications 
of this at ground level. Circa 1946 LB8C contained two mould rooms. The narrow 
southeastern part was lit from the yard to the northeast; remnants of two original 
windows probably survive in the existing openings. The northwest section of LB8C has 
no external walls, a..nd ca._n only have been illuminated by artificial light. The wall 
dividing it from the northwest range has been largely removed A wide opening in its 
southeast wall with rounded southwest corner, apparently original, gave access to the 
southeast section of the room. 

The Southwest Wing First Floor (Figure 12) 

At first-floor level the same essential layout appears to have prevailed. The northwest 
room (LB 18) retains its three original northwest windows, and houses another drive shaft 
(Figure 19, Plate 14), in line with, and similar in character to the one in the northwest 
range. It extends across the entire width of the wing and has one 18" diameter and two 
2ft diameter drive wheels, and twenty-one gears. This, too, drove machinery that is 
depicted in a photo with the caption 'View of the Old Cutting Shop .... approx. 1946 
before the general move' (Royal Brierley Crystal Archive, Dudley Records Office). It 
shows a series oflathes against the northwest wall of the wing. What is probably a drive 
belt, covered by a wooden guard extends down from the drive shaft towards the 
southeast. High up against the southeast partition wall within the roof space, and relating 
to an open-sided loft, is another, short, drive shaft with one drive wheel and four gears 
(Plate 15). This small area is also depicted in a photograph entitled 'The Very Old 
Stoppering Shop' The southeast end of the northwest wall has been rebuilt at an oblique 
angle, and a doorway inserted in it. There is also an inserted doorway at the southwest 
end of the wall. 

The L-shaped room to the south (LB 19) has been remodelled, for the first floor cuts 
across three blocked windows to the southwest (Plate 16). This floor is reached by a 
staircase in the south corner which cuts across another blocked window (Plate 9). The 
northwest part of this area was the 'putty polishing shop' circa 1946. In the southwest 
wall is an original housing for another drive shaft (Plate 17), that would have been 
aligned northeast-southwest like the surviving ones. At the southeast end of the room is a 
lift relating to the inserted floor. 

The L-shaped section to the east (LB20) contained the cutting stock room and marking 
room circa 1946. Like its counterpart at ground level (LB8C), the southeast section of, 
LB20 was lit by windows to the northeast, two of which survive (blocked). Although the 
southwest wall of the southeast section does not survive, its former presence is suggested 
by a vertical scar on the southeast wall. Circa 1946 this room contained the cutting stock 
room and the marking room. The northwest section of LB20 was unlit, like the 
corresponding area at ground level. 
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The Glasshouse (Figure 11) 

The single-storey range to the southwest of the Southwest Wing is the original glass 
house, one of those visible in the photograph of 1911. It is rectangular in plan, 
approximately 22m x 2lm. To the northwest it is lit by large early to mid-20th-century 
windows. To the northeast is the wall of the Southwest Wing (Figure 20). In it are 
several blocked 19th-century openings. In a roughly central position is a segmental­
headed recess with a sill approximately 0.95m above floor level (Plate 18). To the right 
(southeast) is the other side of the blocked semi-circular arch (Plate 19), that can be seen 
in LB 8B, and which may have been the entrance to the original Lehr. The right-hand 
jamb is clearly indicated by a break in the brickwork, though there seems to be no 
interruption of the left-hand side. 

To the left of this arch, the sills at a level just above the springing of the arch, are three 
blocked windows with segmental heads, 1.8m wide x 1.7m high (Plate 20). These 
openings are even more visible on the other side of the wall, where their rounded jambs 
can be seen (Plate 16). The windows are interesting in that they are at a lower level than 
the first-floor windows on the other side of the building, and that they look out from one 
building into another. They are also unusual in having segmental heads. The blockings 
demonstrate that the interior of the Southwest Wing has been modified; this seems to 
have occurred by the early 20th century when a photograph of the glasshouse was taken 
(Royal Brierley Crystal Archive, Dudley Record Office). Though the glasshouse was re­
roofed circa 1949, there is a row of sawn-off rafters approximately 5m above the floor 
level (Plate 21 ), which probably belonged to the original pyramidal roof. 

Both the southeast and southwest walls have been extensively altered by the insertion of 
large openings. No original features survive in the southwest wall, but the southeast wall 
retains another segmental-headed recess, and the remains of two blocked semi-circular­
arched clerestorey windows. There may have been others, vestiges of which may be 
obscured by the lime wash. 

It was in this glasshouse that the '12 Pot Frisby Furnace' was situated. A Frisbie furnace 
was fed mechanically from underground, and indeed, beneath the glasshouse, extending 
from southeast to northwest is a vaulted passage or 'cave', with an entrance at each end. 
It was approximately central to the building and would have run almost directly beneath 
the furnace. This passage was inaccessible at the time of the evaluation. 

To the southwest of the glasshouse, beneath the demolished sections of the 1870s factory 
is a basement containing the bases of two furnaces (Plate 22). The entrance has been 
rebuilt since 1985 but prior to that lay immediately outside the southwest arm. 

8.2 Honeybourne (Plate 23, Figures 21 & 23-25) 

Honeybourne, which is named after the former owner of the Moor Lane works, was the 
house in which lived John Northwood, the Technical Director from 1881. It stands at the 
southwest entrance to the site and is aligned roughly northeast-southwest facing 
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southwest. The house is constructed of red brick laid in Flemish stretcher bond with blue 
brick dressings and hipped plain tile roof, and brick chimney stack. There are two stories 
above a basement and the house has a dentilled eaves course in the same style as those of 
the factory buildings. The three-bay main front has vertical sashes with chamfered jambs 
and painted sills and lintels, the centre window being of reduced proportions. A single­
storey porch has a terracotta coping and contains a 20th -century door within an original 
ogee and quarter round moulded architrave. Above a rectangular overlight is a lintel 
bearing the inscription 'Honeyboume'. Both the overlight and a pair of small windows to 
the side walls of the porch contain stained glass within decorative leaded patterns. The 
garden front, to the southeast, is dominated by a single-storey canted bay window with a 
terracotta coped parapet. The bay contains three blocked, segmental-headed, full-height 
openings to the ground storey, and three vertical sashes to the first floor. 

The basement is entered from the northeast. A central semi-circular-arched opening 
leads into a narrow, unlit tunnel-vaulted room. To the right, or northwest, is a door with 
a segmental-headed relieving arch flanked by a pair of 19th-century casement windows. 
This entrance gave access to a large square room, also tunnel-vaulted, the walls lined 
with low stone benches. Against the southwest wall is a brick-built stove containing a 
copper, suggesting that this room may have been a laundry. 

In the southwest wall is a doorway leading to two more cellars at the front that are not 
vaulted. Each cellar is lit by a single window. There are also stairs ascending to the 
ground storey. The walls of the two rooms are lined with low brick benches, and both 
were probably used for the storage of provisions. 

Access to the ground storey from the front door is to a small hallway within the porch 
with decorative-tile floor, moulded coving and foliate-ceiling rose. Opposite the entrance 
are two late 20th-century doors opening to the staircase (left) and corridor (right), though 
the house was originally open to the porch. The corridor leads past the staircase to a rear 
hall. Both corridor and rear hall have the same decorative tiles and coving- as the front 
hall, as well as a moulded picture rail. The staircase is now boxed in, but, originally, the 
balustrade was open to the corridor; it has a closed string above wooden panelling, turned 
column-on-vase balusters, and square newels at top and bottom with ball finials. 

There were four main rooms at ground level. At the front were the dining room 
(southeast), and a parlour (northwest); to the rear were the drawing room (southeast) and 
the kitchen (northwest). The parlour was entered from the front and rear halls, the dining 
room from the corridor and the drawing room, the drawing room from the rear hall and 
dining room, and the kitchen from the rear hall. The rear hall also gave access to a pantry 
at the back of the house, to the back door, and to steps leading down to the cellar. 

Each of the four main rooms was provided with a fireplace, but these are blocked and the 
surrounds have not survived. Several original doorways remain. These are mostly 4-
panelled with ogee-moulded architraves and metal fingerplates. All the principal rooms 
retain skirting boards, and in the drawing room there is an elaborately moulded plaster 
ceiling rose and moulded coving. 
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